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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial z‘:az.emmi:% give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the loss
and total comprehensive income, changes in eguity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia! statementis section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIL) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAT's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

We draw vour attention to note 38 of the financial statements which explains the uncertainties
and management’s assessment of the financial impact due to the lockdown and other restrictions
imposed by the (“w@mm@m of India and other conditions related to the COVID-19 pandemic
situation, for which a definitive assessment in the subsequent period is highly dependent upon
circumstances as they %va%v&

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Head Office : 902, Raheja Centre, Free Press Journal Marg, Nariman Point, Mumbai-400 021.
Telephone ; +01 22 2282 4811, 2204 0861 » Email : sorabsengineer@yahoo.com, ssemum@sseco.in

Bengalury Branch : F-1, Vaastu Jayalaxmi, B Street, Opp. Fortis Hospital, 15t Main Road, Sheshadripuram, Bengaluru-560020,
Telephone : +97 9925879234 » Email : sseblr@sseco.in
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nsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

r the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whiole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bu
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect & materiat

misstatement when if exists. Misstatements can arise ffom fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could re Gmb y be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of t%’éese inancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s Tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the finandial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform ausﬁ it procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in om*er to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 14 {1y of the
Act, we are alsp responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company %’sag adequé@i%
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

L

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management

@

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material urzcezrm‘ﬁ%y exisis, we are required
%:Q draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements

, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
m@ audit evidence obiained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions mav cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
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Other Matters

Due to COVID-19 related lockdown restrictions, management was able to perform vear end
physical verification of inventories, only at certain locations, subsequent to the year-end. Also,
we were not able to physically observe the stock verification, wherever carried out by
management. Conseguently, we h&ve‘- performed alternate procedures to audit the existence of
inventory as per the guldance provided in SA 501 "Audit Ev‘ée’nce - Specific Considerations for
Selected Items” which includes inspection of supporting documentation relating to purchases,
sales, results of cyclical count performed by the Management thmugh the year and such other
%_h‘rd part\,f evidences where applicable and have obtained sufficient ag;&pmg:sz iate gudit evidence
to issue our unmodified opinion on these financial statements.

Our report on the Statement is not modif in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Regulrements

. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the Information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books,

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss inclu ff'!"&(;% Other Comprehensive Em:m"w
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are |
agreement with the relevant books of account,

I our opinion, the aforesald financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Sectior
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
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iii. There have been no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required %:sy the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified In paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Om@ r.

For Borab 8. Engineer & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417wW

§
E

Ch. Chokshi Shreyas %
Partner

Membership No. 100892
UDIN: 20100882AA8A0P1113

Ahmedabad
July 09, 2020



! 1 of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note

1 Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
finandcial information, as required under the Companles Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of
the Company.
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Us@ posst mz v of collusion or improper management override of CG%"%EFQ%C‘ g ial misstatements

due to error or fraud m(;y occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
.

internal financial controle over finandal reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
i

the mi@ %M' nciat control over financial reporting may become | mz&{j@mﬁsﬁz@ because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
e?f ctively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria

tablished by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
ahe Guidance Note on Audit of Internal %“% nanc cial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ind

For Sorab $. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Qeg%atrai% n No. 1104 i?ifv’

CA. Cholksht Shrevas B.
Partner
Membership No.100882

Ahmedabad
July 09, 2020
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As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable
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According the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
secured / unsecured loans to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Consequently,
requirerments of clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not advanced any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security or
made any investment covered under section 185 of the Act, However, the Company has
advanced loans or given guarantees or provided security or made investments covered
under section 186 of the Act. We are of the opinion that provisions of section 186 of the
Act have been complied with.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rutes framed thereunder. No
order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or
Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal,

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has ot prescribed
maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Act in respect of the Company's
product. Consequently, requirement of clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate avthorities
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Emplovess’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Custom Duty, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to it.
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institutions and bankes,

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer. However, the term loans obtained during the year were, prima facie, applied
by the Company for the purpose for which they were ralsed, other than temporary
deployment pending application,

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given fo us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or emplovees
has been noticed or reported during the vear.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Consequently, requirements of clause (xii) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

To the best of aur knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

To the best of cur knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares during the vear under review, Consequently, requirements of clause (xiv) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable,

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him.,
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(¥

(b} Capital v, -
{cy ~of-use 33
(d} Intangible asset )
(&) Financial assets

(i) Other fin 7 {dy

(f) Deferred tax ass {n 24

17,55,99,271
15,46,49,302

1,30,70,809

14,71,21,880

(g} Other non-current assets 8 21,72,745 )
Totat non-current assets 1,44,22 84,876 54,01, 74,667
1L.Current assets
(&} Inventories a 85,29,13,212 64,28,55,195
(b} Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 {b} 6,72,846 54,29,298
(i) Bank balances other than (i) above 7{cy 2,800,000 -
(iiiy Loans 7 (&) 10,58,576 4,08,761
(iv) Others financial assets 7 {d) 88,21,016 1,57,60,270
(¢} Current tax assets (net) 10 1,19,10,645 73,77,397
(d) Other current assets 8 12,63,73,012 $,72,30,275
Total current assets 1,00,19,49,307 76,90,01,196
Total Assets 2,44,42,34,183 1,30,91,75,863
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 11 7,68,94,880 7,68,94,880
(b) Other equity 12 37,22,31,144 61,37,82,409
Total equity 44,91,26,024 69,06,77,289
LIABILITIES
I. Non~current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 (a) 11,47,376 21,98,867
(ii) Lease liabilities 33 81,67,77,233 -
(b) Long-term provisions 14 67,65,249 25,35,827
Total non-current liabilities 82,46,89,858 47,34,794
II.Current Habilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 13 (a) 57,08,34,697 31,03,24,863
(i) Lease liabilities 33 15,94,87,476 -
(iii) Trade payables 13 (b)
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small )
enterprises B
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 38,90,76,882 26,86,01,149
(iv) Other financial liabilities 13 (c) 1,79,00,133 82,72,159
(b} Other current liabilities 15 2,89,00,185 2,48,48,436
(¢) Short-term provisions 14 42,18,928 17,17,173
Total current liabilities 1,17,04,18,301 61,37,63,780
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,44,42,34,183 1,30,91,75,863
Significant Accounting Policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

In terms of our report attached

For Sorab S, Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 110417W é

TR {—

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No. 100892

Director

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : July 9, 2020

Suresh Jayaraman

DIN: 03033110

Place : Bengaluru
Date : July 9, 2020

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited

DIN: 00064044




Arving Beauty Bran
Statement of Pro

Amount in Bs,

Year ended

Year ended

Particulars Notes 5 :
: : Mareh 31,2028 March 31 2018
I Income
Revenue from operations
Sale of Products 16 2,12,17,37,358 1,78,45,72,032
Sale of Services 1€ 5,59,04,564 4,12,54,605
Operating Income 1€ 14,011,250 5,801,245
Revenue from operations 2,17,80,43,172 1,82,63,27,882
OCther income 17 7,68,135 27,89,4072
Total income (I} e 2,17,98,11,307 1,82,91,17,284
I%. Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade 18 1,48,00,04,401 1,14,34,80,899
Changes in inventories of finished, work in progress goods and stock-in- 19 (21,00,58,017) (7,74,45,631)
trade
Employee benefits expense 20 26,27,76,156 18,39,61,239
Finance costs 21 13,41,18,509 2,17,56,314
Depreciation and amortization expense 22 32,32,48,626 9,14,15,111
Other expenses 23 38,25,88,557 53,08,42,317
Total expenses {11} 2,37,26,78,232 1,89,40,10,249
II1. Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-11) (19,28,66,925) (6,48,92,965)
IV, Exceptional items . R
Y. Profit/(Loss) before tax (I1I-1V) (19,28,66,925) (6,48,92,968)
VI, Tax expense 24
Current tax - .
Deferred Tax charge / (credit) (3,78,64,596) (1,68,64,775)
Total tax expense (3,78,64,596) (1,68,64,775)
VII. Profit/(Loss) for the year (V-VI) (15,50,02,329) (4,80,28,190)
VIII. Other comprehensive income
A, Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss:
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans 29 (19,22,965) 1,31,584
Income tax effect on above 24 4,99,971 (34,212)
(14,22,994) 97,372
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) not to be reclassified to
profit or loss (A) (14,22,994) 97,372
IX. Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax
(VII+VIII) (151641251323) (4,79,30,818)
X. Earnings per equity share
Nominal Value per share - Rs. 10/- (Previous year - Rs, 10/-)
Basic ~ Rs. 31 (20.186) (6.25)
Diluted - Rs, 31 (20.16) (6.25)
Significant Accounting Policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

In terms of our report attached
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registratio:g\ho, 110417w£
o). ?%é\ Mw
CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

Partner
Membership No. 100892

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : July 9, 2020

For and on behalf of the board of directors of

Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited

Sufesh Jayaraman
Director
DIN: 03033110

Place : Bengaluru
Date : July 9, 2020

‘Lmar Gupta

Director )
DIN: 00064041
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{19,28,66,925) (6,48,92,265)

¢ for doubt
Provision for Liti 20,
re based p nent ex se 2,39,45,

; ; 3
Qperating Profit before Working Capital Changes 2$,10,65,110
Working Capital Changes:

/ Becrease in inventories {21,00,58,617)

/ Decrease in other a s (2,87,17,818)

7 Decrease in other financial assets {2,15,93,688)
{Increa / Decrease in ofher bank balances {2,00,000)
incre {Decrease} in trade paya 12,04,75,733
Increase / {Decrease) in other lizbilitie 40,51,74%
Increase / (Decrease) in other financial Habilities 92,01,450 .
Iricrease / (Decrease} in provisions 27,43,284 {(7,21,6103
et Changes in Working Capital (12,5G,97,307) (26,41,28,830)
Cash Generated from Operations 16,59,67,803 (2%,28,589,190)
Direct Taxes paid (Net of Income Tax refund) {45,33,248) (23,25,178)
Net Cash flow received / (used in) Gperating Activities 16,14,34,555 (21,51,84,368)

B Cash Flow from ¥Investing Activities

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equiprment / Intangible assets {13,25,8%,820) (6,77,01,766)
Changes in Loans and advances {6,49,815}) 9,73,85¢%
Interest received 15,744 1,52,626
Net Cash flow received / (used in) Investing Activities (11,32,23,851) (6,65,75,281)
C Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Changes in long term borrowings (9,57,646) (8,72,197)
Changes in short term borrowings 26,05,09,834 30,88,57,949
Repayment of Lease Liabilities {17,87,33,474) -
Interest and Other Borrowing Cost Paid (13,41,18,509) {2,17,56,314)
Net Cash flow received / (used in) Financing Activities {5,32,99,795) 28,62,29,438
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents {50,89,131) 44,69,789
Cash & Cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 54,29,298 8,59,509
Cash & Cash equivalent at the end of the year 3,40,167 54,29,298

Figures in brackets indicate outflows.

Amount in Rs,

March 31, 2015

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
Cash on Hand - N

Balances with Banks 6,72,846 54,29,298
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Note 7b) 6,72,846 54,29,298
Less: Book Overdraft {Note 13c) 3,32,679 -

Cash and cash equivalents 3,40,167 54,29,298

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements,

on cash fl

Disclosure under Para 44A as set out in Ind AS 7

Borrowings:

Long term borrowings 13(a) 31,56,512 (9,57,646) - - - 21,98,866
Short term borrowings 13(3) 31,03,24,863 26,05,09,834 - - - 57,08,34,697
Interest accrued on borrowings 13(c) - - - . . -
Total 31,34,81,375 25,95,52,188 - N B 57,30,33,563

Borrowings:

Long term borrowings 13(a) 40,28,709 (8,72,197; - - - 31,56,512
Short term borrowings 13{a} 14,66,914 30,88,57,949 ’ - - 31,03,24,863
Interest accrued on borrowings 13(c) - - - - - -
Total 54,95,623 30,79,85,752 - - - 31,34,81,375

* The same relates to amount charged in statement of profit and loss.

Notes:
1) The cash flow statement has beern prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) "Statement of Cash Flows”
2) Purchase of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets include movement of capital advances, capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development.

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the board of directors of
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co. Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registratjon No. 110417W
%
&(ﬁ' {,mw*p [

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B, Suresh Jayaraman

Membership No, 100892 Director Director
Partner DIN: 03033110 DIN: 00064041

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : luly 9, 2020

Place : Bengalury
Date :3uly 9, 2020



‘Balance Amount in s,
. Note 11

As at Aprit 1, 2018 7,68,94,880

Issue of Equity Share capital -

As at March 31, 2019 7,68,94,880

Issue of Equity Share capitai -

As at March 31, 2020 7,68,94,880

Amount in Rs,

B. Other equity

Particulars L _Reserves and 3&?@%@
.. ﬁezﬁ:wmw g}mmmm ﬁ&nizﬂhmt;&ﬂ

from %mreﬁ%

____ Totalequity
%fi»etamsggi - .

. Neteiz

?@r ES@?

 Noteiz

, ... ~ %&%e iz ; ...
Balance as at April 1, 2018 83,32,04,742 4,69, 876 {(17,49,98,774} 65,86,75,844
Loss for the year - - (4,80,28,190) (4,80,28,190)
Other comprehensive income for the period - - 97,372 ©7,372
Total Comprehensive income for the period - - (4,79,30,818) {4,79,30,818)
Contribution from the Holding Company for - 30,37,383 - 30,377,383
Employee Stock Options

Balance as at March 31, 2019 83,32,04,742 35,007,259 (22,29,29,562) 61,37,82,409
Balance as at April 1, 2019 83,32,04,742 35,07,259 (22,29,29,592) 61,37,82,409
Loss for the year - - (15,50,02,329) (15,50,02,329)
Other comprehensive income for the period - - (14,22,994) (14,22,994)
Total Comprehensive income for the period - - (15,64,25,323) (15,64,25,323)
Impact on adoption of Ind AS 116 - - (14,73,93,411) (14,73,93,411)
Tax Impact on adoption of Ind AS 116 - - 3,83,22,286 3,83,22,286
Contribution from the Holding Company for - 2,39,45,183 - 2,39,45,183
Employee Stock Options

Balance as at March 31, 2020 83,32,04,742 2,74,52,442 (48,84,26,040) 37,22,31,144

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 110417Z

u@ﬁ; @Q!fwﬁ““

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited

Pramod Ku%aj%ar Gupta
Director
DIN: 00064041

Suresh Jayaraman
Director
DIN: 03033110

Partner
Membership No. 100892

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : July 9, 2020

Place : Bengaluru
Date : July 9, 2020



TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L. Corporate Information

Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (‘the Company’) is engaged in the business of
retailing of Cosmetic products and Accessories of SEPHORA and other Partner Brands. SEPHORA
is @ French Chain of Cosmetic stores which offers beauty products including make-up, fragrance
and hair care. The Company has some of the best known international brands apart from
SEPHORA, like MUFE, BOSCIA, DIOR, CLINIQUE, STILA, ESTEE LAUDER, LANCOME,

The Company is a Subsidiary of Arvind Fashions Limited and is incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is
located at Naroda Road, Ahmedabad - 380025,

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on July 09, 2020.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

2.1 Basis of Preparation and Presentation and Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on the accrual
basis except for the certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value, the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent notified ("the Act™),

Accounting policies were consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Financial Statements comprising of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including
other comprehensive income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows as
at March 31, 2020 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirements of Division II of schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant
schedule III) as applicable to financial statement.

2.2 Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
followings:

¢ Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments);

e Derivative financial instruments measured at fair value;

e Share based payments;

e Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

e Value in Use
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The following are the

fi

3.1,

3.2.

nancial statements consistently to all the periods presented:

Current versus non-current classification

4y

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-

current classification.

An asset is current when it is:
¢ Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating
cycle;
« Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
¢ Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
¢ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.,

A liability is current when:
e It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle:
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company’s normal operating cycle is
not clearly identifiable, it is assumed to be twelve months.

Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are
continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various
other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company
believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Difference between actual results
and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.
The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date,
or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as
at the reporting date.



3. Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company's functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on
settlement of such transaction and on translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are recognised in profit or loss,
They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or
loss, respectively).

3.4.Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives at fair value at the end of
each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a fiability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability
Or

* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest,




" a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by

nother market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Httoa

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
¢ Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities,
» lLevel 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly abservable.
e lLevel 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair
value measurement, such as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such
as asset held for sale,

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties.
Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management after discussion
with and approval by the Company’s Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
Management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation
techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, management verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.

Management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change
in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable on yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.



This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value relate
given in the relevant notes.
¢ Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
»  Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
e Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets measured at fair value on the date
of transition
¢ Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Company recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of fixed assets which take substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to
the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready
for their intended use at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets
less residual values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight line method as
prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 except for following assets
category as shown in Table below.



Buildings 30 Years 20 Years

Plant & Machinery 15 Years 6 to 15 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years 6 to 8 Years
Furniture & Fixture 10 Years 6 to 9 Years
Computer Software - 5 Years
Motor Cars 6 Years 4 Years

However, Leasehold Improvements have been depreciated considering the lease term or
useful life whichever is lower.

The management believes that the useful life as given above best represent the period over
which management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are
different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 to the Companies Act
2013,

Any change in useful file are being applied prospectively in accordance with Ind AS 8 -
"Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are
accounted for as separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful
life or over the remaining useful life of the principal assets whichever is less.

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the
period of use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.6.Leases

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract
involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the
right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset
(ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.




Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certaln that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement
date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets
are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of
domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to
the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise
an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease
and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by

reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar
economic environment with a similar end date;

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases
with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application;



3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at

the date of initial application:

4. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which
transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

3.7.Borrowing cost

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR) and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset.

Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents
the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed
specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such current investments is
deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a project
form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a weighted
average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the Company during the year.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the statement of profit and loss
during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is
interrupted.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

3.8.Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,



™y o by e . ST £ o o g e TN S O
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount o
recognised in the Statermnent of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised,

Amortisation

t

Value of License Brands acquired has been amortized on Straight Line basis over the period
of five years,

Software is depreciated over management estimate of its useful life of three-five years.
3.9.Inventories

Inventories of Raw material, Stock-in-trade and Packing Material are valued at the lower of
cost and net realisable value,

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted
for as follows:

¢ Stock in Trade: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted
average basis.

All other inventories are valued at cost,

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.10.Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets of the Company.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair
value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five
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cash flows after the fifth

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset,
except for a property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other
comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU's
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable armount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

3.11.Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of traded goods and related services.
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has
generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, except for the agency
services below, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to
the customer.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods
is transferred to the customer, i.e., generally on delivery of the goods.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the sale of goods provide
customers with a right of return and discounts. The rights of return and discounts give rise to
variable consideration.

i. Rights of return

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period.
The Company uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will be returned
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e)

because this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to whict

e
will be entitled. The reguirements in Ind AS 115 on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that

can be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned, instead
of revenue, the Company recognises a refund liability. A right of return asset (and
corresponding adjustment to change in inventory is also recognised for the right to recover
products from a customer.

if. Discounts

Discounts are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable
consideration for the expected future discounts, the Company applies the expected value
method. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is
primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract,

Sale of goods ~ customer loyalty programme (deferred revenue)

The Company operates a loyalty point programme which allows customers to accumulate
points when they purchase the products. The points can be redeemed for free products,
subject to a minimum number of points being obtained. Consideration received is allocated
between the product sold and the points issued, with the consideration allocated to the points
equal to their fair value. Fair value of the points is determined by applying a statistical
analysis. The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue when the
points are redeemed.

Rendering of services

Revenue from store displays and sponsorships are recognised based on the period for which
the products or the sponsors’ advertisements are promoted/ displayed. Facility management
fees are recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract.

Revenue from other services are recognised based on the services rendered in accordance
with the terms of contacts on the basis of work performed.

Gift Vouchers

The amount collected on sale of a gift voucher is recognized as a liability and transferred to
revenue (sales) when redeemed or to revenue (sale of services) on expiry

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using
the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included
in other income in the statement of profit or loss.
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Claims receivable on account of Insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company is
reasonably certain of their ultimate collection.

3.12.Financial instruments ~ initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets
(i} Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset,

(ii)Subsequent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:
e Financial assets at amortised cost
e Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

¢« Financial assets at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if;
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
iosses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.
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Financial asset ir value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset {s measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPIL) on the principal

amount outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured inttially as well
as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L.
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI
financial asset is reported as interest income using the FIR method.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified
as at FVTPL,

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise
meets amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as
at fair value through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing
so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to
as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument
as at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value with all changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised when:

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

or

The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

(iv} Reclassification of financial assets
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets
which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties, A change in the business
model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for.

Original Revised Accounting treatment
classification | classification
Amortised cost | FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortized cost and
fair value is recognised in P&L.

FVTPL Amortised Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
Cost new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated

based on the new gross carrying amount.
Amortised cost | FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortised cost and
fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR
due to reclassification.

FVOCI Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new amortised cost carrying amount. However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against
fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured
as if it had always been measured at amortised

cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new carrying amount. No other adjustment is
required,

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value,

Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification
date,




{viImpairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets
and credit risk exposure:

» Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

« Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial
asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and
Ind AS 18

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on:

e Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the
scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, if they do not contain a significant financing
component

e Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the
scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 that contain a significant financing
component, if the Company applies practical expedient to ignore separation of
time value of money, and

¢ All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the
cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the Company is required to use
the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument



s Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements rhat
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are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized
as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected
in a separate line under the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contract assets and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the
net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does
not reduce impairment aflowance from the gross carrying amount,

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/
origination.

b) Financial Liabilities
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of
financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative
financial instruments.

(ii)Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

¢ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss,
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ties designate Witial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated at the ini of recognition, and only If the criteria in Ind-AS
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCIL. These gains/ loss
are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated
any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.
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¢ Loans and Borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR armortisation
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

(iii}) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance
sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

¢) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts
to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly
to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised
in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or
treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
e Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a
recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment




« Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that s
either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or Hability
or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an
unrecognised firm commitment
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At the inception of & hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents
the hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation
includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge,
the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the
risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes
In the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged
item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected
to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described
below:

(i) Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as finance costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item
attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged
item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to
carrying value is amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge
using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and
no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value
attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item,
the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable
to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss
recognised in profit and loss.

(ii)Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI
in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
the statement of profit and loss.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign
currency risk in forecast transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward
commodity contracts for its exposure to volatility in the commodity prices. The ineffective
portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the
ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is recognised in other income or
expenses.



Armounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction
affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is
i
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recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged itemn is the cost of a non-
financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCI are transferred
to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement
or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked,
or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast
transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

3.13.Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.14.Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is
recognised outside Statement of profit and loss. Current income tax are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.



Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

s

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
or lability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss:

¢ In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss;

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised
outside Statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

The Company recognizes tax credits in the nature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent
that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, i.e., the period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the



year in which the Company recognizes tax credits as an asset, the U I created by
way of tax credit to the Statement of profit and loss, The Company reviews such tax credit
asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not
have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period. Deferred tax

includes MAT tax credit.
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3.15.Employee Benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term
compensated absences, awards, exgratia, performance pay etc. and the same are
recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b} Post-Employment Benefits

(i) Defined contribution plan
The Company’s approved provident fund scheme, superannuation fund scheme,
employees’ state insurance fund scheme and Employees’ pension scheme are defined
contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
paid/payable under such schemes. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes
is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(ii)Defined benefit plan
The employee’s gratuity fund scheme and post-retirement medical benefit schemes
are Company’s defined benefit plans. The present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation under the
defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss in
subsequent periods.
c) Other long term employment benefits:

The employee’s long term compensated absences are Company’s defined benefit plans.

The present value of the obligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using

the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet, In case of funded

plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation, to recognise the

obligation on the net basis.

d) Termination Benefits :
Termination benefits such as compensation under voluntary retirement scheme are
recognised in the year in which termination benefits become payable.
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3.16.8hare-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for eguity
instruments (equity-settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the
grant is made using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP)
reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity -settled
transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a
period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining
the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed
as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value,
Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions., Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fajr
value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award uniess there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised
is the expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are
met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair
value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the
counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately
through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

3.17.Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year.



Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the vear
plus the welighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of
ail the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

3.18.Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to
a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability., When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
a finance cost,

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it
is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be
recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Financial Statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

3.19.Non-current assets held for sale/ distribution to owners and discontinued
operations

The Company classifies non-current assets (or disposal group) as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing use.
Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes
to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be
committed to the sale expected within one year from the date of classification.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets is available
for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such assets, its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not
abandoned. The Company treats sale of the asset to be highly probable when:
e The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset,
e An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if
applicable),
e The asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation
to its current fair value,



e The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale with
from the date of classification , and

e Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant
changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the
fair value less costs to sell. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented
separately in the balance sheet.

Animpairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the assets to fair
value less cost to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in the fair value less
cost to sell of an assets but not in excess of the cumulative impairment loss previously
recognised, A gain or loss previously not recognised by the date of sale of the non-current
assets s recognised on the date of de-recognition.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/
distribution to owners are not depreciated or amortised.

A discontinued operation qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity
that either has been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:
e Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,
e Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations; or
e Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are
presented as a single amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.20.Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker.

3.21.Events after the reporting period

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the
end of the reporting period. The financial statements are adjusted for such events before
authorisation for issue. Non-adjusting events are events that are indicative of conditions that
arose after the end of the reporting period. Non-adjusting events after the reporting date are
not accounted but disclosed.

3.22.Exceptional Items

An item of income or expense which by its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in order
to improve an understanding of the performance of the Company is treated as an exceptional
item and the same is disclosed in the notes to accounts




3.23.Changes in accounting policles and disclosures
New and amended standards
) ind AS 116 Leases

The Company applied Ind AS 116 Leases for the first time. The nature and effect of the
changes as a result of adoption of this new accounting standard is described in note 33,

b) Amendments to Ind AS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to Ind AS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement occurs during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting period, an entity
is required to:

I. Determine the current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to re-
measure the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the
plan and the plan assets after that event.

ii. An entity is also required to determine the net interest for the remainder of the period
after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement using the net defined benefit liability
(asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that evert,
and the discount rate used to re-measure that net defined benefit liability (asset).

The amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as it did not
have any plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements during the period.

c) Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The appendix addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of Ind AS 12 Income Taxes. It does not apply to taxes
or levies outside the scope of Ind AS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating
to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Appendix specifically
addresses the following:

e Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

e The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities

¢ How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates

* How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The Company determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or
together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments and uses the approach that better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

The Company applies significant judgement in identifying uncertainties over income tax
treatments. Since the Company operates in a complex multinational environment, it assessed
whether the Appendix had an impact on its financial statements.

Upon adoption of the Appendix C to Ind AS 12, the Company considered whether it has any
uncertain tax positions. The Company determined, based on its tax compliance that it is
probable that its tax treatments (including those for the subsidiaries) will be accepted by the
taxation authorities.

The Appendix did not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company.
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d} Amendments to Ind AS 109: Prepayment Features with Megative Compensation

Under Ind AS 109, a debt instrument can be rmeasured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash flows are “solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding” (the SPPI criterion)
and the instrument is held within the appropriate business model for that classification. The
amendments to Ind AS 109 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless
of an event or circumnstance that causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective
of which party pays or receives reasonable compensation for the early termination of the
contract.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company,



Critical accounting Judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and, income
and expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. Such judgements, estimates
and associated assumptions are evaluated based on historical experience and various other
factors, including estimation of the effects of uncertain future events, which are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The Management has considered the possible effects, if
any, that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of its
assets. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the
management in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the
rmost significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements and / or key sources
of estimation uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Revenue recognition

The Company assesses its revenue arrangement in order to determine if its business partner is
acting as a principle or as an agent by analysing whether the Company has primary obligation
for pricing latitude and exposure to credit / inventory risk associated with the sale of goods. The
Company has concluded that certain arrangements are on principal to agent basis where its
business partner is acting as an agent. Hence, sale of goods to its business partner is recognised
once they are sold to the end customer.

Customer loyalty program reward points

Customer loyalty program reward points having a predetermined life are granted to customers
when they make purchases. The fair value of the consideration on sale of goods resulting in such
award credits is allocated between the goods supplied and the reward point credits granted. The
consideration allocated to the reward point credits is measured by reference to fair value from
the standpoint of the holder and revenue is deferred. The Company at the end of each reporting
period estimates the number of points redeemed and that it expects will be further redeemed,
based on empirical data of redemption / lapses, and revenue is accordingly recognised.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present value
of the obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future
pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.



The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation and extrapolated as
needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit
obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive credit
spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the
basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to
change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are hased

on expected future inflation rates for the country.
Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 29.
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments. See Note 34 for further disclosures.

Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using a
binomial model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for
share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life
of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For equity-
settled share-based payment transactions, the liability needs to be measured at the time of
grant. The expenses recognised for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 32.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

The Company has taxable temporary difference and tax planning opportunities available that
could partly support the recognition of these credits as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the
Company has determined that it can recognise deferred tax assets on the tax credits carried
forward and unused losses carried forward.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 24,



Inventories

An inventory provision is recognised for cases where the realisable value is estimated to be tower
than the inventory carrying value. The inventory provision is estimated taking into account
various factors, including prevailing sales prices of inventory item, the seasonality of the item’s
sales profile and losses associated with expired / slow-moving inventory itemns.

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets at the end of each reporting period. During financial years ended March 31, 2019, there
were no changes in useful lives of property plant and equipment and intangible assets other than
(a) useful lives of leasehold improvements which have been considered lower of the lease term
or useful life and (b) those resulting from store closures / shifting of premises,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales
transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF
model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five vears and do not include
restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future
cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in
accordance with the applicable Ind AS. A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event,
the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows.

The Company has significant capital commitments in relation to various capital projects which
are not recognized on the balance sheet. In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities
may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company.

There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and
circumstances, are not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such
obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected
as liabilities in the Financial Statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final
outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Company involved, it is not expected that such
contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or profitability (Refer Note 14
and 25).



The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised,
or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to bhe
exercised,
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Arvind Beauty Brands Ret
Motes to the Finsncial Statements

Rote & : Intangible assets
Amount in Rs.,

; . ; Lomputer Software Srand Yalue & Total Intangible
DBarriculars ; : ; ‘ . License Brands Assets
Gross Carrying Yalue
As at April 1, 2018 31,258,796 3,23,01,032 3,54,26,828
Additions 32,87,080 - 32,87,080
Deductions - - -
As at March 31, 2019 64,112,876 3,43,01,032 3,87,13,908
Additions 29,311,203 - 29,341,203
Deductions - -
As st March 31, 2020 93,44,079 3,23,01,032 4,16,45 111
Amortization and Impairment
As at April 1, 2018 16,78,533 1,65,83,140 1,82,41,673
Amortization for the Year 9,61,594 64,39,832 74,011,426
Deductions - - -
As at March 31, 2019 26,40,127 2,30,02,972 2,56,43,099
Amortization for the Year 28,89,238 64,39,833 ©3,28,071
Deductions - - =
As at March 31, 2020 55,29,365 2,94,42,805 3,49,72,170
Net Carrying Value
As at March 31, 2020 38,14,714 28,58,227 66,72,941
As at March 31, 2019 37,72,749 92,98,060 1,30,70,809




Lrvind Beauly Brands £
Motes to the Flnancial St

Mote 7 @ Financial sssets

7 (&) Loans

Amaount in Rs,

?M’iim%&z‘%

Asal
Mareh 31, 2020

Az et
March 31, 2019

Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise sia
Current
Loans to employess

10,58,576 1,008,763
Total Loans 10,68,576 4,08,761
No loans are due from directors or p ors of the Company either severally or jointly with any DErson.
? {b) Cash and cash equivalent
Amount in Rs,
soofsab As gt

?a?ﬁ;ﬁ;ﬁargs - ‘

| March 31 2090

| March 31,2015

Balance with Bank

In Current accounts and debit balance in cash credit accounts

6,72,846

Total cash and cash equivalents

&, 72,846

54,29,298

7 (¢} Gther bank balance

Amount in Rs,

; Asat
. March 31, 2020

- BAsat :
 March 31,2018

Deposits with original maturity less than 12 months

2,00,000

Total other bank balances

2,060,000

7 (d) Other financial assets

Amount in Rs,

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

. Asar
. March 31, 2020

As at

 March 31,2019

Non-current
Security deposits

17,55,37,333

14,68,59,942

Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 61,938 2,61,938
17,55,99,271 14,71,21,880

Current
Income receivable 8,96,241 12,43,585
Accrued Interest 6,482 2,033
Other Receivables 79,18,293 1,44,54,652
88,21,016 1,57,00,270
Total other financial assets 18,44,20,287 16,28,22,150

7 (e) : Financial Assets by category

March 31, 2020
Loans

Amount in Rs,

- 10,58,576
Cash and Cash equivalents - - 6,722,846
Other Bank Balance 2,00,000
Other financial assets - - 18,44,20,287
Total Financial Assets =~ = - 18,63,51,709
March 31, 2019
Loans - - 4,08,761
Cash and Cash equivalents - 54,29,298
Other Bank Balance R
Other financial assets - - 16,28,22,150
Total Financial Assets - - - 16,86,60,209

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 36
Fair value disclosure for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 34 and fair value hierarchy disclosures are in Note 35



Amound i Bs,

Mareh 21,2009

Mon-current
Capital advar 1,02,66,422
1,82,66,422
Current
Advances
Advance ta others 1,18,26,736
Prepaid expenses 16,51,083
Sales tax paid under protest 13,511,580
Balance with Gove went Authorities (¢ fNote 1) 11,01,49,807
Balance with collectorate of central excise and customs . 14,33,806
13,683,730z
Total 12,85,4% 787 10,74,96,697
Advance to directors or to firm/private cornpany where director is interested - -
Mote
1. Balance with Government Authorities mainly consist of input credit availed.
Hote 91 Inventories (At lower of cost and net realizable value)
Amount in Rs.
Lo - Asat. s vyag .
articulars o s A asat. :
Farticula, March 31,2020 March 31 2019
Stock-in-trade 85,29,13,212 64,00,43,372
Packing materials - 28,11,823
Total 85,29,13,212 64,28,55,195

1) Inventory write downs are accounted, considering the nature of inventory, ageing and net realizable value, for Rs. 3,33,74,801/-
(March 31, 2018: Rs. 1,96,79,977/-). The changes in write downs are recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss.

Note 10 : Current Tax Assets (Net)

. Asat
. March 31,2019

. March 31, 2020

Tax Paid in Advance (Net of Provision) 1,19,10,645 73,77,397
Total 1,19,10,645 73,77,397
%
b



Arvind Beauly Brands Retall Private Limited {
Motes to the Financial Statements

fMote 11 : Equity share capital

G Ag atMarch 21,2020 fo st March 31,2019
Particitiars nEs

Mo, of shares Arpount in Re. Mo, ol shares Amountin Rs,

Authorised share capitsl
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each {March 31, 1,0G,00,000 10,00,00,000
2019: Rs. 10 each)

1,00,00,000 10,60,00,000

fesued and subseribed sharve capitat

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (March 31, 76,389,488 7,68,94,880 76,89,488 7.68,94,880
2018 Rs, 10 each)

Subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (March 31, 76,589,488 7,68,94,880 76,89,488 7,68,94,880
2019: Rs. 10 each)

Total 76,89,488 7,68,94,880 76,89,488 7,68,94,880

11.1. Reconciliation of shares

?artxcu%ars As at Mamh 33,2020 . AsatMarch 337 2019 .
L o N {}f shares  Amountin Rs Mo ofshares  Amounti in Rs.
At the begmmng Of the permej 76,89,488 7,68,94,880 76,89,488 7,68,94,880
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Cutstanding at the end of the period 76,89,488 7,68,94,88¢ 76,889,488 7,68,24 880

11.2. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 each. Each shareholder is entitled to one
vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

11.3. Shares held by holding company

‘; -  Asat Marchsz,, 2020 ~ AsatMarch 31,2018
. No. of shares  Amountin Rs ~ ;No. of shares Amount in Rs.

Arvind Fashions Limited

(along with nominees) 76,89,488 7,68,94,880 76,859,488 7,68,94,880

11.4. Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares in the Company

As at MarchSi, 2019
f shares % of shareholdin ng

Arvind Fashions Limited
(along with nominees)

76,89,488 100% 76,89,488 100%

11.5 Objective, policy and procedure of capital management, refer Note 37

Ui

o



Arvind Beauly Brands Retall Private Limited (CIN - UBT

Maolas to the Financial Statements

Kote 12 : Other Equlty

Amount in Bs,

Pargieulars

A% at
Mareh 312006

A5 st

March 33,2019

Mote 12,1 Reserves & Surplus

Securities premium
Balance as per last fina
Add: Addition during the ye
Addh Utitized during the year
Balance at the end of the year

wisl statements

Contribution from Parent for ESOP (Refer Mote 32)
Balance as per last financial statements
Add: Contribution received during the vear
Balance at the end of the year

Surplus In statement of profit and loss
Balance as per last financial statements
Impact on adoption of Ind AS 116
Tax Impact on adoption of Ind AS 116
Add: Profit/{loss) for the year

§3,32,04,74%

83,32,04,743

35,07,259 4,69,876
2,39,45,183 30,37,383
2,74,52,442 35,067,259
(22,29,7%,5923 {17,49,98,774)

(14,73,93,411)
3,83,22,286
(15,50,02,329)

(4,80,28,190)

Add / (Lessy: OCI for the year {14,22,994) 97,372

Balance at the end of the year (48,84,26,040) (22,29,29,592)
Total reserves & surplus 37,22,31,144 61,37,82,4009
Total Other equity 37,22,31,144 61,37,82,400

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows :

Securities premium

Securities premium reserve is created due to premium on issue of shares, These reserve is utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,

Contribution from Parent for ESOP

This reserve relates to share options granted by Arvind Fashions Limited (H

employees is set out in Note 32,

MNote 13 : Financial liabilities

i3 (a) Borrowings

Pai‘fticuiarsk‘

Asat

 March 31, 3030

olding Company) under it's employee share option plan, Further information about share

Amount in Rs,

. B
 March 31, 2019

Long-term Borrowings (Refer Note 1(a) below)
(At amortised cost)
Non-current portion
Secured
Term loan from Banks

Current maturities (Refer Mote 13c¢)
Secured (at amortised cost)
Term loan from Banks

Total long-term borrowings
Short-term Borrowings (Refer Note 1(b))
(At amortised cost)

Unsecured

Intercorporate Deposits - From Related Parties

Yotal short-term borrowings

11,47,376 21,98,867
11,47,376 21,98,867
10,51,490 S,57,645
10,51,490 9,57,645
21,98,866 31,56,512

57,08,34,697

31,03,24,863

57,08,34,697

31,03,24,863

Total borrowings

57,30,33,563

31,34,81,375




Arvind Beauty Brands
Motes to the Finan

i Private Limited (CIN - UB2100GI2015PTCO82998)

L. Becured Borrowings
{a} Long term

?&rtéfaiz%asﬂ g&moﬁni in R&‘ i:;;faié Security Yarmns of répryment
Hire Purchase loans 21,898,806 8.25% - Hypothecation of Ve Monthily payment of
Equated Monthly
Instaiments beginning
from the month
subsequent to taking
3. 47% loans )
(b} Unsecured
Inter Corporate deposit carries Interest st the rate 8.50% per annum
13 (b) Trade pavables
v Arnount in Rs,
Bardelars . o o L - o Asat o L Asat
S . o e : : : ‘ CoBMareh 39 30900 March 331 2010
Current
Acceptances - -
Other Trade Payables
-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note a below) - -
-Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 38,90,76,882 26,86,01,14¢%
Total 38,90,76,882 26,86,01 149

Note:
@ The Company has not received any intimation from suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development {MSMEDY Act,
2006 and hence disclosures as required under Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 regarding:

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier at the end of each accounting year;

(b} the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Deveiopment Act, 2006 (27 of 2006).

(¢} Amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during accounting year;

(d) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

(e) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

(f) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, untii such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

13 (c¢) Other financial liabilities

e Amount in Rs,
o . Asapr
. March 31, 2019

‘March 31,2020

Current
Current maturity of long term borrowings 10,51,490 9,57,645
Interest accrued and due 5,88,527 -
Payable to employees 1,36,03,790 59,82,678
Book Overdraft 3,32,679 -
Payable for capital goods 23,23,647 13,31,836
1,79,00,133 82,772,159
Total 1,79,00,133 82,722,159

Note: As at March 31, 2020 there is no amount due and outstanding to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

13(d) : Financial Liabilities by category

ount in Rs.

"March 31, 2020

Borrowings - - 57,19,82,073
Current maturity of long term borrowings - - 10,51,490
Trade payables - - 38,90,76,882
Payable to employees - - 1,36,03,790
Interest Accrued and Due - - 5,88,527
Book Overdraft - - 3,32,679
Lease Liabilities - - 97,62,64,709
Payable in respect of Capital goods - - 23,23,647
Total Financial liabilities - - 1,85,52,23,797

March 31, 2019

Borrowings - - 31,25,23,730
Current maturity of long term borrowings - - 9,57,645
Trade payables - - 26,86,01,149
Payable to employees - - 59,82,678
Payable in respect of Capital goods - - 13,31,836
Total Financial liabilities - - 58,93,97,038

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 36
Fair value disclosure for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 34 and fair value hierarchy disclosures are in Note 35




Arvind Beauty Brands Betail p
Mates to the Pinancial Statem

fvate Limited (CIN ~ US2100GI2018PTO082996)

Mote 14 Provigions
Amount in fg,
Particudars As ot As at
March 2120248 Barch 31 2045

Long-term

Provision for employee benefits (Refer Mote 29)
Frovision for leave encashment
Provision for Gratulty

Short-term
Provision for employes benefits {Refer Note 2§)

Provision for leave encashment 20,54,100 16,17,172
Others

Short term provision for litigation/disputed matters (Refer Note a below) 21,64,828 1,006,000

42,118,928 1¥,17,373

Total 1,09,84 177 42,53,100

{a) Provision for litigation/ disputed matters

The Company has made provisions for pending disputed matters in respect of Indirect taxes like GST, Sales tax, Excise duty and Customs duty, the liability which
may arise in the future, the guantum whereof will be determined as and when the matters are disposed off.

The movermnent in the provision account is as under :

L - : . ; o . March 31,2020 018
Balance as per last financial statements 1,00,000 -
Addition / Settlement during the year (Net) 20,64,828 1,00,000
Balance as at the end of the yvear 21,64,828 i,00,000
Note 15 : Other current liabilities / non current liahilities
ST ; Amount in Rs,
Particulars . Bear .. Asab
L L . March 31,2030 _March 31, 2019
Current

Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source etc. 1,18,71,487 1,15,24,115
Deferred income of loyalty program reward points (Refer note (a) below) 1,70,28,698 1,33,24,321
Total 2,89,00,185 2,48,48,436

(a) Deferred income of Loyalty Program Reward Points
The Company has deferred the revenue related to the customer loyalty program reward points. The movement in deferred revenue for those reward points are
given below :

Amount in Rs.
. Asat

March 31, 2020

[?arjt‘c_;fﬁ v

- ; . ... o _March 31 37018
Balance as per [ast financial statements 1,33,24,321 99,53,134
Add: Provision made during the year (Net) (Refer Note 16) 1,76,74,406 2,60,61,550
(Less): Redemption made during the year 1,39,70,029 2,26,90,363
Balance at the end of the vear 1,70,28,698 1,33,24,321




Arvived Beguty Brands
Motes

aif Private Lhmived (CIN - 1
srrrentis

the Plnancla

Mote 18 : Revenue from operations

Amrount e Re,

Yoar Enden

Farticulars )
; cular March 24,0030

Yaur Elvded
Mareh 3108019

Sale of products 2,12,17,37 "

Sale of services 5,59,04,564

Operating income
Gift Voucher Income

1,78,45,72,032

4,12,

Foreign exchange fluctuation on vendors (Net) 5,01,245
Totad 2,17,80,43 172 1,82,63,27 882
i. Bisaggregation of revenue from contracts with custoamers Amount in Rs,

- . ‘ - Year Ended Year Ended

~‘?3‘as'§ti¢:§,z!ae‘§ . 2 L
. 7 oMsreh B3 2020

March 31, 2019

A, Revenue based on Geography

i. Domestic 2,17,80,43,172 1,82,63,27,882
i, Export - -
2,17,90,43,172 1,82,6%,27,882
B. Revenue based on Business Segment
Cosmetics products 2,12,17,37,358 1,78,45,72,032
Others™® 5,73,05,814 4,17,55,850
2,17,90,43,172 1,82,63,27,882
*1t includes revenue from space on hire, insurance claims and exchange difference
I. Reconciliation of Revenue from Operation with Contract Price Amount in Rs,
P : : . YearEnded

. Barticulars . YearEnded
| Aidoearns March 31, 2020

YearEnded

 March 31, 2019

Contract Price
Less:
Sales Returns -

2,19,67,17,578

1,85,24,85,419

95,987
Customer Loyalty Program 1,76,74,406 2,60,61,550
Total Revenue from Operations 2,17,90,43,172 1,82,63,27,882

Note 17 : Other income
Particulars ..

. YearEnded
March 31, 20

March 31,2019

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost 20,192 1,46,203
Miscellaneous income 7,47,943 26,43,199
Total 7,68,135 27,89,402

Note 18 : Purchases of stock-in-trade

~ YearEnded

Cosmetics & Accessories

1,48,00,04,401

Amont n Rs.
Ended ‘

1,14,34,80,899

Total 1,48,00,04,401

1,14,34,80,899

Note 19 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Stock at the end of the year

Aountin Rs
Ende

Stock-in-trade 85,29,13,212 64,28,55,195
Stock at the beginning of the year

Stock-in-trade 64,28,55,195 56,54,09,564
Total (21,00,58,017) (7,74,45,631)

Note 20 : Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages, gratuity, bonus, commission, etc. (Refer Note 29) 21,77,30,790 16,42,15,652
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,17,20,920 77,44,398
Welfare and training expenses 93,79,263 89,63,806
Share based payment to employees (Refer Note 32) 2,39,45,183 30,37,383

26,27,76,156 18,39,61,239




Amount in Rs,

i YearEnded Year Ended
Sariloular i e 5
Mareh 232030 Slarch 33,2019

zs on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

14

Term Loans 3,38,507

i 2,14,17,807
Other borrowing cost -
Total 13,41,18,500 2,17,56,314

Mote 22 : Depreciation and amortization expense
Arnount in Rs.

T Year Ended L Yeay Ended
Partizulars o o S e
o March 33, 2620 Mareh 3317019
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment {Refer Note 5) 10,66,64,481 8,40,13,68%
Amortization on Intangible assets (Refer Note 6) 93,29,071 74,01,426
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Refer Note 33) 20,72,55,074 -
Tatal 32,32,48,62¢8 5,14,15,111

Note 23 : Other expenses

Amount in Rs

 March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Power and fuel 4,08,11,996 3,29,50,974
Service Charges 1,92,00,000 3,22,41,664
Insurance 23,18,230 18,52,324
Printing, stationery & communication 51,18,501 30,890,405
Rent

- Short Term leases and leases of low-value assets (Refer Note 33 ) 4,87,59,939 -

- Rent others - 24,91,62,482
Commission, Brokerage & Discount 28,51,468 1,99,60,361
Rates and taxes 81,911,479 25,97,802
Repairs

To Others 5,72,23,852 4,40,31,301
Royalty on Sales 4,39,99,513 3,67,14,952
Freight, insurance & clearing charge 1,25,06,680 54,71,919
Legal & Professional charges 48,01,095 39,95,073
Housekeeping Charges 1,34,54,599 1,20,17,444
Security Charges 1,74,58,724 1,50,76,709
Conveyance & Travelling expense 1,42,54,565 1,05,14,794
Advertisement and Publicity 5,56,80,707 3,02,80,135
Sales Promotion 1,07,800 3,027
Charges for Credit Card Transactions 1,46,70,647 1,33,58,918
Packing Materials Expenses 59,27,122 68,66,487
Contract Labour Charges 48,14,131 47,04,593
Sundry debits written off 5,75,081 -
Sampling and Testing Expenses 5,600 13,552
Provision for Litigation/Disputes 20,64,828 1,00,000
Auditor's remuneration (Refer Note a below) 20,77,000 16,45,850
Bank charges 45,37,386 33,38,589
Miscellaneous expenses 11,77,614 8,52,962
Total 38,25,88,557 53,08,42,317

Amount in Rs.

Payment to Auditors as :

Auditors 12,00,000 12,00,000
For tax audit 3,15,000 3,00,000
For other certification work 4,54,000 50,000
For reimbursement of expenses 1,08,000 95,850
Total 20,77,000 16,45,850
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Mote 24 : Income Tax

The major component of income tax expense for the vear ended Ma

2EBOGIZ0LE

ch 31,

PTCO82996)

2020 and March 31, 2019 are:

Amount in Bs,

Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2020

Year Ended
March 31,2019

Statement of Profit & Loss
Deferred Tax
Deferred tax Charge/(Credit)

(3,78,64,596)

(1,68,64,775)

Income tax expense raported in the statement of

standalone profit & loss {3,78,64,596) (1,68,64,775)
OCY Section

Arnount in Rs,
@aﬁ:mmars YearEnded = VYear Fnded

March 31 20%0

March 31, 2019

Statement to Gther camﬁreh@ns:ve income ( GCI }
Deferred tax related to items recognized in OCI
during the vear

Net loss/(gain) on actuarial gains and losses

4,99,971

(34,212)

Deferred tax charged to GCI

4,99,971

(34,212)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multipiied by domestic tax rate for the year ended

March 31,2020 and March 31, 2019:

A) Current tax

Acouti tax from ontmumg oprat!ons
Tax Rate

March 31, 2020

~ Year Ended
March 31 2019

nt m Rs.

(19,28,66 925)

(6,48,92,968)

26.000% 26%
Current Tax Expenses on Profit before tax at the enacted (5,01,45,401) (1,68,72,172)
income tax rate in India
Adjustments
Expenditure not deductible for Tax 39,365 7,397
Deferred tax assets not recognised as realization is not probable 1,22,41,440 -
At the effective income tax (3,78,64,596) (1,68,64,775)
Effective Income Tax Rate % 0.00% 0.00%
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Naote 25 @ Contingent liabilities
Amount in Re.
s oat As at
March 31,2020 Moreh 31, 2619

Contingent Habilities not provided for
Disputed demands in respect of -
Sales tax and VAT 46,88,639

Maotes @
{a) It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timj ng of cash outflows, if any, in respect
of the above pending resolution of the respective proceedi ings.
(b) The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above Contingent liabilities
(c) The Company believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations,
(d) There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on
Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019, The Company will make provision, on receiving further
clarity on the subject.

Note 26 : Capital commitments

Amount in Rg,
. _As st ‘ Asat
M&rch 31, 2626 Mamh 31 2319

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account and not provided for

Other commitments - -

3,57,17,461 20,76,666

Note 27 : Foreign Exchange Exposures not hedged

A. Exposure Not Hedged

_As at March 31,2019
Amount In FC Amount in Rs.

March 31,2020

Payable to creditors usD 32,331 24,46,297 24 1,660
Payable to creditors AED 63,000 12,97,800 - -

Note 28 : Segment Reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of retail trade of Cosmetics & Accessories through retail and
departmental store faclilities, which in the context of Indian Accounting Standard 108 ‘Operating Segment', constitutes
a single reportable primary business segment,

Secondary Segment

The risk and returns of the Company are not influenced by geographical location of its operations or location of its
customers. Both are situated in India.

Information about major customers

Considering the nature of business of Company in which it operates, the Company deals with various customers
including multiple geographics. Conseguently, none of the customer contribute materially to the revenue of the
Company.
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Motes 1o the Financle!l Statements

principal assumptions used in determining above defined henefit obligations for the company’s

Barticulare Year %s}@ie&ﬁ Year Ended
March 31, 2620 BMareh 33,2819
Discount rate 6.50% 6.80%
8.60% for Front End 8.90% for Front End
Future salary increase Employee Employees
7.40% for others 8.40% for others
Expected rate of return on plan assats 6.50% 6.80%
34% for Front End 39.90% for Front End
Attrition rate Employees 9.3% for Employees 10.40% for
Others Others
Morality rate during employment Indian assured lives Indian assured lives
Mortality(2006-08) Mortality(2006-08)
A guantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
Gratuity Amount in Re,
-, .. . Tncvease [ (Decrease) in defined benefit obligatic
. Particulars _ Sensitivity level . YearEnded VearEnded
- o March 31,2030 . March 31, 2018
Gratuity
Discount rate 50 basis points increase (1,24,342) (37,383)
50 basis points decrease 1,31,263 38,441
Salary increase 50 basis points increase 96,815 31,346
50 basis points decrease (95,729) (30,791)
Attrition rate 50 basis points increase (34,861) (29,151)
50 basis points decrease 34,949 29,531

The above sensitivity analysis may not be representative of the actual benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. In presenting the ahove
sensitivity analysis, the present value of defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at
the end of reporting period.

In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected
unit credit method at the end of reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation
liability recognized in the balance sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not
change compared with the previous perjod.

The followings are the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit plan :

. YearEnded  YearEnded
... ; . . March 31,2020 . March 31,2019
Gratuity
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 13,43,741 6,65,361
Between 2 and 5 years 25,37,014 18,16,471
Beyond 5 years 17,89,984 6,77,688
Total expected payments 56,70,739 31,59,520

Weighted average duration of defined plan obligation (based on discounted cash flows)

Gratuity 5 years o 3years '
The company does not have any contributions expected towards planned assets for the next year

Leave encashment

The Company has a policy on leave encashment which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The expected cost
of accumulating leave encashment is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each Balance
Sheet date using projected unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid/availed as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in
the period in which the absences occur.

The Company has recognised following as expenses and included in Note No. 24 "Employee benefit expense”.

020

Leave encashment 31,48,589 18,13,522

31,48,589 18,13,522
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Arvind Beauty Brands Retall Private Limited (CEM ~ UB2I00GI201SPTOOREG0E

Motes to the Financial Statements

Transactions with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 34, 2019,

Armount in Rs,

Particulars

Holding Company

Enterprise
having

Key significant

Managerial
Bersonneland
Naon Executive
Dlrectors

Fellow
Subsidiaries Management
Personnel and
Mon-Everotive

CDivector

influence by Hey.

Frust

Receiving of Services - Shared services
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019

Receiving of Services - Commission
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019

Receiving of Services - Others
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2016

11,200

8,93,97,492 - -
7,51,22,750 - -

1,03,53,562 -

28,57,949 . .
21,89,231 - -

Rendering of Services - Shared service
March 31, 2020 - - - - -
March 31, 2019 - 2,35,360 - - -

5

Interest Expense
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019

4,27,65,583 - - - -
3,60,959 - - 2,22,27,335 -

Contribution Given for Emiployee Benefit Plans
March 31, 2020 - - - - 579
March 31, 2019 - - - - 26,39,152

Loan Taken/(Repayment of Loan)
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019

22,20,20,810 - - - -
31,00,00,000 - - - -

¢ Balances

Payable in respect of Loans

March 31, 2020 57,08,34,697 - - - -
March 31, 2019 31,03,24,863 - - - .
Payable in respect of Current Liabilities

March 31, 2020 - - - - -
March 31, 2019 74,320 - - - .
Recelvable in respect of Current Assets

March 31, 2020 56,184 12,59,07,422 - - -
March 31, 2019 - 73,29,713 - - R

@ The amounts recognised as an expense during the year for share based payment in respect of Directors is Rs 2,38,22,843 (March 31, 2019 Rs. 28,22,569).
e Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

1) Transaction entered into with related party are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm‘s fength transactions. Qutstanding balances other
than loan given & taken at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash,

2) Loans in INR taken from the related party carries interest rate of 8.50% (March 31, 2019 : 8.00%)
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Mote 33 @ Leases

#. For transition, the Company has elected not o a ments of Ind AS 116 to lea

oly the regui

L mor om the d F tra n by class o hich the underlying asse :
ase-by e Company has also used the practical 1t provided by the stan plying Ind

AS 116 to leases previously classified as operat d whether a
contract, is or contains & lease, at the date of
applying Ind AS 37 immediately before the date of initial applicat
review, excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right of use asset at the date of injtial application and used
hindsight when d mining the lease term If the contract contai ns to extend or terminat f
Company has used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

s under Ind AS 17 and therefore, has rot resssesse

tiat application, relied on its assessment of whether leasas are onerous,

an alternative to performing an impairment

On transition, the Company recognised a lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
The right-of-use asset is recognised at its carrying armount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement
of the lease, but discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2019, The weighted average
incremental borrowing rate of 9,50% has been applied to lease labilities recognised in the balance sheet at the date of
initial application.

On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation
cost for the right-to-use asset, and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability.

The difference between the future minimum lease rental commitments towards non-cancellable operating leases
reported as at March 31, 2019 compared to the lease liability as accounted as at April 1, 2019 is primarily due to
inclusion of present value of the lease payments for the cancellable term of the leases, reduction due to discounting of
the lease liabilities as per the requirement of Ind AS 116 and exclusion of the commitments for the leases to which the
Company has chosen to apply the practical expedient as per the standard.

The Company has adopted modified retrospective approach as per para C8 (C) (i) of Ind-AS 116 "Leases” to its leases
effective from accounting period beginning from Aprit 01, 2019 and recognised Right of Use assets and Lease Liability as
on Aprif 01, 2019 and difference between Right of Use Assets and Lease Liability, net of deferred tax Rs, 14,73,93,411/-
(Deferred Tax Rs. 3,83,22,286/-) has been adjusted in retained earnings.

B. The Company has taken Showrooms and other facilities on lease period of 1 to 9 years with option of renewal.
Disclosures as per Ind AS 116 - Leases are as follows:

€. Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets (Showrooms)
_Amountin Rs.
Year Ended ;
_March 31, 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year -
Recognition of ROU Asset on adoption of Ind AS 116 79,93,31,069
Additions 20,82,73,703
Deletions -
Depreciation (20,72,55,074)
Balance at the end of the year 80,03,49,698

. Movement in lease Iabiliies ] Amoun in Rs,

Balance at the beginning of the year T =

Recognition of Lease Liability on adoption of Ind AS 116 94,67,24,480

Additions 20,82,73,703

Deletions

Finance cost accrued during the year 8,93,08,521

Payment of lease liabilities (26,80,41,995)
Balance at the end of the year 37,62,64,709

E. . Bl ” - ’ Amont i Rs

15.94,87.476

Less than one year

One to five years 62,89,18,469
More than five years 18,78,58,764
Total 97,62,64,709

F.  The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current
assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due,

G. The Company incurred Rs. 4,87,59,939/- for the year ended March 31, 2020 towards expenses relating to
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
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instrumients risk managenment

istruments, and iny

(&) Market risk

o nctatl instrument witl fluctuate beca
risk, Financial Instruments affected by market risk include borroy

compris
cther rece

types of
trade and other payables and ¢

basis. This tool
spproximate guantification of the exposure in the event that

isk estimates provided here assume:

- & paraliel shift of 50-basis points of the interest ra

inst all currencie

- a simultaneous, paraliel foreign exchange ra by 2%

The potential economic impact, due to these assumptions, is based on the occurrence of adverse / inverse market conditions and reft t & $ resulting
from the sensitivity analysis. Actual results that are included in the Statement of profit & loss may differ materially from these estimates due to actual developments in
the global financial markets.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity, pension and other post-retirement obligations and provisions.

The following assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:
- The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks, T
financial liabilities held at respective period/year end including the effect of hedge accounting, if any.

is based on the financial assets and

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market interst rates. The Company's
explosure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primiarity to the Company's debt obligations with floating interst rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate 1oans and borrowings. As at March 31, 2020, approximately 100%
of the Company's Borrowings are at fixed rate of interest {March 31, 2013 100%)

Interest rate sensitivity

- Fixed rate financial instruments measured at cost : Since a change in interest rate would not change the carrying amount of this category of instruments, there is no
net income impact and they are excluded from this analysis

- The effect of interest rate changes on future cash flows is excluded from this analysis.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates, The Company
transacts business in jocal currency and in foreign currency, primarily in USD. The Company has obtained foreign currency loans and has foreign currency trade
payables and receivables etc. and is, therefore, exposed to foreign exchange risk. The Company may use forward contracts or foreign exchange options towards
hedging risk resulting from changes and fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rate.

The company manages its foreign currency risk by hedging appropriate percentage of its foreign currency exposure, as approved by Board as per established risk
management policy. Details of the hedge & unhedged position of the company given in Note 27.

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and AED rates to the functional currency of respective entity, with all other
variables held constant. The company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material. The impact on the company’s profit before tax is
due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Amount in Rs.

March 31, 2020 +2% (48,926} +2% (25,856)
-2% 48,926 ~2% 25,956

March 3¢, 2019 +2% (33) +2% -
~2% 33 -2% -

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk Is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. To manage this, the
Company periodically assesses financial reliability of customers and other counterparties, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends and
analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of financial assets. Individual risk limits are set and periadically reviewed on the basis of such information, The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial instruments,




Particulars

ficial nstruments and cash deposits

Liguidity risk

Liqui

jeate sources of
domestic capital
t xd on
Arnount in Rs,

?arﬁwia@ o e e o kess than 1vear Ayearer more

As at March 31, 2020

Interest bearing borrowings 57,18,86,187 11,47,376
Lease Liabilities 15,94,87,476 81,67,77,223
Trade payables 38,50,76,882 -
Other financial liabilities 1,68,48,643 -
,13,7%,99,188 831,79,24,609

As at March %1, 2019

Interest bearing borrawings 31,12,82,508 21,98,867

Trade payables 26,86,01,149 -

Other financial ligbilities 73,14,514 -
58,71,98,i71 21,98,867

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged In similar business activities, or activities in the same geographi

features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by ch

{ region, or have economic
anges in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations

indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Note 37 : Capital management

For the purpose of the company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
company. The primary objective of the company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios in order to

support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes ir economic conditions or its business requirements. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The company includes
and short-term deposits (including other bank balance).

‘March 31,2020

shareholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital
within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash

Amount in Rs.
A

 March 31,

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (Note 13) 57,30,33,563 31,34,81,375
Less: Cash and Cash equivalent (including other bank balance and book (5,40,167) (56,91,236)
overdraft)

Net debt 57,24,93,396 39,77,90,139

Equity share capital (Note 11) 7,68,94,880 7,68,94,880
Other equity (Note 12} 37,22,31,144 61,37,82,409

Total capital 44,91,26,024 69,06,77,289

Capital and net debt 1,02,16,19,420 99,84,67,428

Gearing ratio 56.04% 30.83%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the company’s capital management, amongst other things,
interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meetin
call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bear

aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
g the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately

ing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019.

Note 38 : COVID-19

The Pandemic of COVID-19 is having an unprecedented impact globally on people and on the econ

omy. It has caused severe effects on the economy, world over

including India due to lockdowns, disruptions in transportation, supply chain, travel plans, quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures, As a result of
the lockdown imposed by the Government of India owing to spread of COVID-19 in the country, the Company closed its offices from March 23, 2020 and moved to the
concept of Work from Home (WFH) for all employees. Post the recent relaxation in lockdown, the Company has gradually started opening its offices in certain

geographies with limited workforce in-line with the Government's directives issued as on date.

The Company is engaged in the business of trading and retailing of cosmetics and accessories, The operations of the Company has been severely affected by this
disruption. The Company's operations have remain under suspension for substantial part of QIFY21. The effects such as lower than normal business, other disruptions

are expected to have continuing effect at least for the next few quarters based on current assessment.

The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position and of the recoverability and car
appropriate adjustment along with adjustment to revenue recognition. In assessing the recoverability

Tying value of its assets as at balance sheet date and has made

of its assets including receivables and inventories, the Company

has considered internal and external information up to the date of approval of these financial statements including economic forecasts. However, the overall

environment continues to remain uncertain and our assumptions used for preparing the financial state

ments may undergo change depending on the evolving economic

and health environment in the Country, The Company will continue to monitor the situation and constantly assess the financial impact to its retail as well wholesale

operations,

Note 39 : New Accounting Pronouncements to be adopted on or after April 1, 2020

There are no standards or interpretations which are notified but not yet effective and that would be expected to have & material impact on the Company in

the current or future reporting periods.

Note 40 : Regrouped, Recast, Reclassified
Figures of the earlier year have been regrouped or reclassified to conform with those of current year.
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